# STEM SCHOOL

# HIGHLANDS RANCH



# Student Parent Handbook

2024-2025

$\sim$				•				
0	ш	r I	١л	П	$\sim$	0	$\sim$	n
v	u		VI		ъ.	. 7	I ( )	

**Never Stop Innovating** 

# **Our Vision**

We envision a world of exponential possibilities where every child develops the innate knowledge, skills, creativity, and character to thrive, lead, and succeed in an ever-changing future.

# **Table of Contents**

Our Mission	2
Our Vision	2
Table of Contents	3
Handbook Overview	6
District Authorizer Policies	6
Legal Supremacy	6
Equal Education Opportunity Notice	6
Title IX Notice	7
Notice of Non-Discrimination	7
Students Experiencing Homelessness - McKinney Vento Act	8
STEM Formula for Character	9
STEM School Highlands Ranch Student Honor Code	9
Behavior Expectations- Elementary	9
Behavior Expectations- Secondary	9
Assembly Behavior - All Students	10
Bullying, Harassment, and Intimidation	10
Inappropriate Behaviors	11
Prohibited Student Conduct Toward Staff	11
Roles in the Disciplinary Process	11
Dean of Students	11
Counselors	12
Teachers	12
Property Damage/Vandalism	12
Gang Activities Prohibited	12
Consequences for Inappropriate Behavior	13
Dress Code Expectations	13
Minimum Requirements	14
Additional Requirements	14
Suspension/Expulsion	15
Parent Contact for Suspension	16
Effect of a Suspension	16
Make Up Work for Suspended Students	17
Student Statements	18
Items Not Allowed at School	19
Search and Seizure	19
Guidelines for Searches and Seizure	20
Anonymous Reporting	20
Office Procedures and Support	21
Health and Medication	21

Hearing and Vision Screenings	21
Student Immunizations	21
Student Fees	22
Lockers	22
Lost and Found	22
Messages and Item Drop Off	22
Parent Involvement and Volunteering	23
Visitors	23
Parking	23
Senior Parking Space Painting	24
Way to Go (School Carpool)	24
School Pictures	25
Student ID Cards	25
Curriculum and Academics	25
Problem Based Learning	25
Standards Based Grading	26
Rationale and Benefits of SBG:	26
Field Trips	26
Academic Honesty and Integrity	27
State Assessments and Opt-Out	28
Parent Opt-Out	28
Assessment Notification	29
School Related Student Publications	29
Activity Eligibility	30
Athletics	31
Canvas	31
Homework Expectations	32
Make Up Work	32
Late Assignments	33
For Regular Assignments	33
For Problem Based Learning Assignments	33
Exceptions: AP and Concurrent Enrollment	33
Graduation Requirements and Participation in Graduation Exercises	33
Progress Reports	34
Promotion/Retention Requirements	34
READ Act Requirements	34
Honor Roll	35
Academic Letter	35
Instructional Technology	35
Apps and Resources	35
School Issued computers	36

Cell Phone Expectations	36
Guidelines:	36
Netiquette (Internet Étiquette)	38
Social Media:	38
Technology Acceptable Use Expectations	39
Classroom Technology Monitoring	39
Information Technology	39
Student Support	40
Special Education	40
Multi-Tiered System of Support (MTSS)	41
English Language Development	41
Section 504	42
Gifted and Talented Education	43
Secondary Counseling	43
Enrichment	44
School Day Procedures	44
Arrival and Departure	44
Secondary Students	44
Elementary Students	45
Late Pick-Up Policy	45
Attendance, Absences, Tardiness, and Truancy	46
Attendance	46
Absences	46
Excused Absences	47
Extended Absences	48
Tardiness	48
Truancy	48
Closed Campus	49
Leaving School	50
<b>Emergency Closing, Delayed Openings and Early Dismissals</b>	50
Delayed Opening	50
Early Dismissal	50
Closing School	50
Emergency Protocol	50
Communication Pathways	51
Change of Contact Information (Address, Phone Number, etc.)	51
Complaint and Whistleblower Policy	52

#### Handbook Overview

The STEM School Highlands Ranch Student and Family Handbook contains a summary of the expectations, policies, and procedures that guide our School. Any reference in policies to a student's "parent" also includes the legal guardian of a student. Students and parents are responsible for knowing and following all school policies and procedures. The policies contained in this handbook are intended to be a guide and summary and are not necessarily all-inclusive of the School's policies, procedures, or practice.. The rules in this handbook are subject to interpretation and modification at any time by the School.

Students and parents will be notified via email of any material changes to the contents of this handbook via updates to the handbook on the School's website.

#### **District Authorizer Policies**

As a public charter school the School is subject to the policies of its authorizing school district, unless those policies are not applicable or are waived. This handbook attempts to note where a district policy applies, but there could still be instances where a district policy applies to a given circumstance or situation, especially if it is not covered by this Handbook. If a parent is uncertain about the applicability of a district policy, he or she may contact the School to inquire.

#### Legal Supremacy

This handbook is not intended to violate any local, state, or federal law. The laws regulating Schools change on almost an annual basis, and at times more frequent, with new statutes, regulations, and court rulings interpreting, changing, or adding to the applicable body of legal rules with which Schools must comply. No provision or policy of the School applies or will be enforced if it conflicts with or is superseded by any applicable legal requirement or prohibition. This handbook supersedes any previous handbook or policy statements, whether written or oral, issued by the School.

# **Equal Education Opportunity Notice**

The educational programs, activities and employment opportunities offered by the School are offered without regard to any protected class status, including disability, race, creed, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender expression, gender identity, pregnancy, marital status, religion, ancestry, age, genetic information, need for special education services, or any other applicable status protected by federal, state, or local law. Accordingly, no otherwise qualified student, employee, applicant for employment, or member of the public may be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of,

or be subjected to unlawful discrimination under or in any District program or activity on the basis of any legally applicable protected status.

In compliance with the Colorado Crown Act, any references in any handbooks or policies of the School or practices related to prohibiting discrimination on the basis of an individual's race shall include a person's hair texture, hair type, hair length, or a protective hairstyle that is commonly or historically associated with race; specifically, without limitation, such hairstyles as braids, locs, twists, tight coils or curls, cornrows, Bantu knots, Afros, and headwraps.

#### Title IX Notice

The School does not discriminate on the basis of sex and prohibits sex discrimination in any education program or activity that it operates, as required by Title IX and its regulations, including in admission and employment. Inquiries about Title IX may be referred to the School's Title IX Coordinator, the U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights, or both.

To learn more about the Complaint and Whistle Blower Policy, please click here.

To report information about conduct that may constitute sex discrimination or make a complaint of sex discrimination under Title IX. The School's Title IX Coordinator is the STEM School Executive Director.

#### Notice of Non-Discrimination

The School does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, disability, or age in its programs and activities and provides equal access to the Boy Scouts and other designated youth groups, as required by law. The following person has been designated to handle inquiries regarding the School's non-discrimination policies:

Executive Director 8773 S. Ridgeline Blvd., Highlands Ranch, CO 80108 (303)683-7836

Chief Innovation Officer 8920 Barrons Blvd., Highlands Ranch, CO 80108 (303) 683-7836

#### Students Experiencing Homelessness - McKinney Vento Act

The McKinney-Vento Act was enacted to address the numerous barriers homeless children face in obtaining an education. The Act ensures educational rights and protections for children and youth experiencing homelessness. Students may qualify for certain rights and protections under the federal McKinney-Vento Act if they lack a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence, which includes without limitation if a student lives in any of the following situations: in a shelter; in a motel or campground due to the lack of an alternative adequate accommodation; in a car, park, abandoned building, or bus or train station; doubled up with other people due to loss of housing or economic hardship.

Eligible students have certain rights, including without limitation, the ability to enroll in school immediately, even if lacking documents normally required for enrollment; the ability to attend classes while the school gathers needed documents; or continue attending their school of origin (the school they attended when permanently housed or the school in which they were last enrolled), if that is their preference and in their best interest, and receive transportation to and from the school of origin, if requested.

If you believe you may be eligible, contact the Director of Student Support Services to find out what services and supports may be available.

#### STEM Formula for Character



STEM School Highlands Ranch expects all students, parents, faculty, and staff to abide by the STEM Formula for Character: Honesty, Integrity, Respect, Responsibility, and Empathy. Failure to abide by the STEM Formula for Character may result in disciplinary action.

- Honesty: Telling the truth, even when it's not easy
- Integrity: Doing what is right, even when no one is watching
- Respect: Treating everyone--staff, students, volunteers, oneself, and property with kindness
- Responsibility: Being accountable for one's actions and decisions
- Empathy: The capacity to understand or feel what another person is experiencing from within the other person's frame of reference

#### STEM School Highlands Ranch Student Honor Code

#### Students will:

- Honor Others
- Respect Property
- Preserve the Learning Environment

#### Behavior Expectations- Elementary

STEM School Highlands Ranch believes in high expectations for students of any age. At the elementary level we follow a Positive Behavior Intervention and Support system in which we place a large focus on the positive behaviors our students are exhibiting. STEM School Highlands Ranch elementary staff will continuously, throughout the year, teach and model behavior expectations for our students. Our students will be rewarded for demonstrating Spartan Characteristics: honesty, integrity, respect, responsibility, and empathy, that align to the behavior expectations. For more information on behavior expectations and the Positive Behavior Intervention and Support system click here.

#### Behavior Expectations- Secondary

STEM students are the best and brightest students in Colorado and we are honored to partner with parents in their character and identity development. We have high expectations for student behavior, but understand that personal growth occurs through trials, errors, and consequences. Students will receive ongoing support and coaching during Access and through discussions with School leaders when appropriate.

#### Assembly Behavior - All Students

STEM School Highlands Ranch is a performance-oriented school. Students are expected to respond positively to all programs. There are a variety of acceptable audience responses such as applause, laughter at humor that is presented, and responding vocally to direct questions that may be asked. Members of the audience are not to interfere with stage performances. Students are not allowed to insult or intimidate guests and/or performers by rude behaviors such as yelling, whistling, standing up, moving around, or calling out people's names. Students who insist on this type of behavior will be dismissed from the program and referred to an administrator for disciplinary action.

At all performances, Students MUST:

- Enter the program venue calmly and go directly to their seats
- Remain seated throughout the entire program
- Treat guests with respect

Performances and school-wide programs at STEM School Highlands Ranch are an integral part of the curriculum. Students learn to demonstrate an understanding and respect for all guests and program visitors through appropriate audience response.

#### Bullying, Harassment, and Intimidation

STEM School Highlands Ranch is committed to a safe and civil educational environment for all students, employees, volunteers, and visitors free from bullying, harassment, or intimidation. STEM follows the DCSD Student <u>Code of Conduct and Discipline Handbook</u> which includes their Bullying, Harassment, and Discrimination Policies.

Many behaviors that do not rise to the level of bullying, harassment, or intimidation, may still be prohibited by other district policies or building, classroom, or program rules.

It is the responsibility of STEM School Highlands Ranch to create and maintain a safe, civil, respectful, and inclusive learning community in conjunction with comprehensive training of staff and volunteers, including the education of students in partnership with families and the community. The policy is to be implemented in conjunction with the Comprehensive Safe Schools Plan that includes prevention, intervention, crisis response, recovery, and annual review. Employees, in particular, are expected to support the dignity and safety of all members of the school community.

Depending upon the frequency and severity of the conduct, counseling, corrective discipline, and/or referral to law enforcement will be used to change the behavior of the perpetrator and remediate the impact to the victim. This includes appropriate interventions(s), restoration of a positive climate, and support for victims and others impacted by the violation. False reporting or retaliation for harassment, intimidation, or bullying also constitutes violation of this policy.

#### Inappropriate Behaviors

At STEM School Highlands Ranch, we are committed to optimizing learning for all students. STEM students are expected to be well behaved at all times, to respect themselves, others, and property. Unfortunately, sometimes students behave inappropriately. Our philosophy towards discipline is one that provides guidance and direction to acceptable behavior in order to develop a young person's own sense of self-discipline. Teachers, administrators, and parents will work together to remedy problematic behaviors once a student has exhibited them. In any case, when a student creates problems for him or herself, there will be consequences based on DCSD and STEM responsibility expectations.

#### Prohibited Student Conduct Toward Staff

The School prohibits any assault upon, disorderly conduct toward, harassment of, the making knowingly of a false allegation of child abuse against, or any alleged offense under the "Colorado Criminal Code" directed toward a teacher or School employee, or instances of damage occurring on the premises to the personal property of a School teacher or School employee by a student.

If this prohibited conduct occurs, the teacher or School employee may file a complaint with the School administration. The School administration will, after receipt of such report and proof deemed adequate to the School administration, suspend the student for three days, in accordance with School policies, and will initiate procedures for the further suspension or expulsion of the student where injury or property damage has occurred, as deemed appropriate by School administration.

The School administration will report the incident to the district attorney or appropriate local law enforcement.

# Roles in the Disciplinary Process

#### Dean of Students

The goal of any meeting between a student and the Dean is that of a learning opportunity for the student in order to implement a positive change in behavior. The process will involve a discussion of honesty, integrity, respect, responsibility, and empathy. In most instances parents will be notified of the student's visit to the Dean's office. The primary goal of the consequences by the Dean is to require the student to take responsibility for the infraction.

The goals of a parent conference with the Dean include:

• To exchange accurate information about the student

• To determine how the parent-school partnership can best work together to lead the student to reform his behavior

The Dean will preserve the integrity of the disciplinary process at STEM School Highlands Ranch by modeling the values of the STEM School Highlands Ranch honor code and consistently treating students and their families with respect and professionalism. The Dean is an extremely valuable and accessible part of a student's character development and education at STEM School Highlands Ranch. Our goal is to create a safe, respectful, and responsible environment, where learning can take place.

#### Counselors

When necessary, students may be referred to the school counselor for problem solving, mediation, peer relationships, and social/emotional support.

#### **Teachers**

Teachers will have the authority to implement discipline in their classrooms that is consistent with the Principles of Discipline. Teachers will utilize the Dean to implement discipline whenever appropriate and most especially when disciplinary action by the teacher would take away from maintaining an effective learning environment in the classroom. Disciplinary procedures may also involve other designated STEM staff besides those mentioned.

#### Property Damage/Vandalism

STEM School Highlands Ranch is not responsible for loss, theft, or damage of items brought to school. Fines will be levied on parents for vandalism or theft of school property committed by their students. Fines will also be levied for lost or damaged school property. Students may also be required to be involved in the maintenance or repair of damaged property.

# **Gang Activities Prohibited**

Pursuant to C.R.S. 22-32.109.1(2)(a)(F), the School is committed to keeping the School free from the harmful influence or effects of street gangs or similar organizations that advocate or promote illegal drugs, violence, or other criminal activity. The presence of any apparel, signs, symbols, activity, accessories, appearances, colors, or any other attribute that denotes membership in street gangs or

that advocate or promote illegal activities are prohibited on school grounds, in school vehicles, and at school activities or sanctioned events.

#### Consequences for Inappropriate Behavior

The activity of learning requires students to be attentive and polite. Students are expected to uphold the values of honesty, integrity, respect, responsibility, and empathy as citizens in the STEM School Highlands Ranch community. If a student does misbehave, the consequences for the infraction will be immediate, relevant, and effectual. In evaluating consequences, teachers and Directors will determine if the act is a "first time," a "repeated," or a "habitual" offense.

Special note about dress code violations: Students in violation of the dress code will be sent to the office and must call a parent or guardian. Parents will either bring acceptable attire, or students will be sent home. These absences are NOT excused.

Students' misbehavior will not be used to "teach" the class a lesson. At no time will a student's disciplinary record be discussed with another student or parent. However, other students or parents may be consulted regarding an incident in an attempt to discern truth.

STEM School desires to educate all students who enter our School, expecting nothing less than the best from each one.

Douglas County School District is the sole arbiter of expulsions. STEM School may only recommend expulsion of a student to DCSD. The expulsion process and proceedings will follow all DCSD policies that apply. When students are expelled, they are expelled from the Douglas County School District.

STEM School cannot and does not tolerate students who disrupt class. STEM School requires all students to be respectful of the learning environment. Students who disrupt class may be sent to the office for a disciplinary meeting.

# **Dress Code Expectations**

STEM School Highlands Ranch respects students' rights to express themselves in the way they dress. All students who attend STEM School Highlands Ranch are also expected to respect the school community by dressing appropriately for a K-12 educational environment. Student attire should facilitate participation in learning as well as the health and safety of students and the adults who supervise them. The purpose is to provide and maintain a safe school environment that is conducive to student learning. The primary responsibility of the student's attire rests with the student and their family. This policy is intended to provide guidance for students, staff, and parents.

#### Minimum Requirements

- 1. Clothing must cover areas from one armpit across to the other armpit, down to approximately 3 to 4 inches in length on the upper thighs. Rips or tears in clothing should not exceed 3 to 4 inches in length.
- Shoes must be worn at all times and should be safe for the school environment (pajamas, bedroom shoes or slippers shall not be worn, except for school activities approved by the director).
- 3. See-through or mesh garments must not be worn without appropriate coverage underneath that meets the minimum requirements of the dress code.
- 4. Head accessories including hats, caps, and scarves are allowed. Eyes and ears must be visible at all times. (Cultural and religious exemptions may apply.) Hats must not be worn in conjunction with a mask so as to obstruct the face.
- 5. Specialized courses may require specialized attire, such as sports uniforms, closed-toe shoes, or safety gear.

#### Additional Requirements

- Clothing may not depict, imply, advertise, or advocate illegal, violent, or lewd conduct, weapons, ammunition, or the use of alcohol, tobacco, marijuana or other controlled substances.
- 2. Clothing may not depict or imply pornography, nudity, or sexual acts.
- 3. Clothing may not display or imply vulgar, discriminatory, or obscene language or images.
- 4. Clothing may not state, imply, or depict hate speech/imagery targeting groups based on race, ethnicity, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity, religious affiliation, or any other protected classification.
- 5. Sunglasses may not be worn inside the building.
- 6. Clothing and accessories that endanger student or staff safety may not be worn.
- 7. Apparel, jewelry, accessories, tattoos, or manner of grooming that, by virtue of its color, arrangement, trademark or any other attribute, denotes membership in a gang that advocates illegal or disruptive behavior is prohibited.
- 8. Students must wear their student ID badges throughout the school day. Student ID's are considered a vital part of the dress code and are to be on the student at all times. Once lanyards are issued to students, the lanyard will be required to be visible on the student. It may be worn around the neck or on the belt, with the ID card attached and visible from the front view. The first replacement badge is free. Each additional replacement badge is \$5 each and will be charged to the student's account. Replacement badges can be requested through the Secondary Front Office.

STEM reserves the right to determine what constitutes appropriate dress. Students who do not adhere to these guidelines will be required to change in order to attend class. Parents will be called if appropriate clothing is not available or the student refuses dress-code appropriate clothing.

In compliance with the Colorado Crown Act, nothing in this dress code shall be construed such that it is discrimination on the basis of an individual's race and shall not prohibit any hair texture, hair type, hair length, or a protective hairstyle that is commonly or historically associated with race; specifically, without limitation, such hairstyles as braids, locs, twists, tight coils or curls, cornrows, Bantu knots, Afros, and headwraps.

# Suspension/Expulsion

The School principal, or an administrator designated in writing by the principal, is delegated the authority to suspend a student for not more than five school days on the following grounds:

- 1. Continued willful disobedience or open and persistent defiance of proper authority
- 2. Willful destruction or defacing of school property
- Behavior on or off school property that is detrimental to the welfare or safety of other pupils or of school personnel, including behavior that creates a threat of physical harm to the child or to other children
- 4. Repeated interference with a school's ability to provide educational opportunities to other students

Or not more than ten school days on the following grounds:

- 1. Committing one of the following offenses on school grounds, in a school vehicle, or at a school activity or sanctioned event: possession of a dangerous weapon without the authorization of the school or the school district; the use, possession, or sale of a drug or controlled substance as defined in section 18-18-102(5), C.R.S.; or the commission of an act that, if committed by an adult, would be robbery pursuant to part 3 of article 4 of title 18, C.R.S., or assault pursuant to part 2 of article 3 of title 18, C.R.S., other than the commission of an act that would be third degree assault under section 18-3-204, C.R.S., if committed by an adult.
  - a. A "dangerous weapon" is defined as a firearm, as defined in section 18-1-901(3)(h), C.R.S.; any pellet gun, BB gun, or other device, whether operational or not, designed to propel projectiles by spring action or compressed air; a fixed-blade knife with a blade that exceeds three inches in length; a spring-loaded knife or a pocket knife with a blade exceeding three and one-half inches in length; or any object, device, instrument, material, or substance, whether animate or inanimate, that is used or intended to be used to inflict death or serious bodily injury
- 2. Carrying, using, actively displaying, or threatening with the use of a firearm facsimile that could reasonably be mistaken for an actual firearm in a school building or in or on school property
- 3. Declaration as a habitually disruptive student, when and if expulsion is being pursued
- 4. Making an intentionally false accusation of criminal activity against an employee of an educational entity to law enforcement authorities, school district officials or personnel, or both 2024-2025 Student/Parent Handbook

A student may be suspended on any of the grounds stated above, or in C.R.S. 22-33-106, for not more than another ten school days. The School's executive officer may extend a suspension to an additional ten school days if necessary in order to present the matter to the next meeting of the board of directors, but the total period of any suspension must not exceed twenty-five school days.

As an alternative to suspension, the School may consider allowing the student to remain in school by having the student's parent agree, with the consent of the student's teachers, to attend class with the student for a period of time specified by the School. If the parent fails to attend class with the student, the student will be suspended in accordance with this policy.

A student suspended for a period of ten days or less will receive an opportunity to be heard (i.e. tell his/her side of the story) to the principal or the principal's designee prior to the student's removal from School, unless an emergency requires immediate removal from School, in which case the opportunity to be heard will follow as soon after the student's removal as practicable. Any student suspended for more than ten days will be given the opportunity to request a review of the suspension by the Executive Director, unless an expulsion recommendation is pending, in which case the student will have an opportunity to be heard at a formal expulsion hearing.

#### **Habitually Disruptive Students**

A "habitually disruptive student" means a student who has caused a material and substantial disruption on school grounds, in a school vehicle, or at a school activity or sanctioned event three or more times during the course of a school year. The student and the parent must be notified in writing for each disruption counted toward declaring the student as habitually disruptive, and the student and parent must be notified in writing and by telephone or other means at the home or the place of employment of the parent of the definition of "habitually disruptive student".

#### Parent Contact for Suspension

If a student is suspended the School will immediately notify the parent of the student that the student has been suspended and of the grounds for the suspension, the period of the suspension, and the time and place for the parent to meet with the School to review the suspension.

#### Effect of a Suspension

Upon suspension, the student will be required to leave the school building and the school grounds immediately, following a determination by the parent and the school of the best way to transfer custody of the student to the parent or an authorized designee of the parent. The student will not be readmitted until a meeting between the parent and the School has taken place or until, at the discretion of the School, the parent has substantially agreed to review the suspension with the School.

If the School cannot contact the parent or the parent repeatedly fails to appear for scheduled meetings, the School may readmit the student. The readmission meeting between the School and the parent will address whether there is a need to develop a remedial discipline plan for the student in an effort to prevent future disciplinary action.

The School will make every reasonable effort to meet with the parent, guardian, or legal custodian of the student during the period of suspension; and will not extend a period of suspension because of the failure of the School to meet with the parent during the period of suspension.

# Make Up Work for Suspended Students

To provide an opportunity for the student to reintegrate into the educational program of the School and to help prevent students from dropping out of School because of an inability to reintegrate into the educational program following the period of suspension, the School will provide an opportunity for a student to make up school work during the period of suspension for full or partial academic credit, as determined by the School, to the extent possible.

Expulsion from STEM School may be recommended to DCSD for the following violations:

- 1. Continued willful disobedience or open and persistent defiance of proper authority
- 2. Willful destruction or defacing of school property
- 3. Behavior on or off school property that is detrimental to the welfare or safety of other students or of school personnel, including behavior that creates a threat of physical harm to the child or to other children
- 4. Repeated interference with a school's ability to provide educational opportunities to other students
- 5. Committing one of the following offenses on school grounds, in a school vehicle, or at a school activity or sanctioned event: possession of a dangerous weapon without the authorization of the school or the school district; the use, possession, or sale of a drug or controlled substance as defined in section 18-18-102(5), C.R.S.; or the commission of an act that, if committed by an adult, would be robbery pursuant to part 3 of article 4 of title 18, C.R.S., or assault pursuant to part 2 of article 3 of title 18, C.R.S., other than the commission of an act that would be third degree assault under section 18-3-204, C.R.S., if committed by an adult.
  - a. A "dangerous weapon" is defined as a firearm, as defined in section 18-1-901(3)(h), C.R.S.; Any pellet gun, BB gun, or other device, whether operational or not, designed to propel projectiles by spring action or compressed air; A fixed-blade knife with a blade that exceeds three inches in length; A spring-loaded knife or a pocket knife with a blade exceeding three and one-half inches in length; or Any object, device, instrument, material, or substance, whether animate or inanimate, that is used or intended to be used to inflict death or serious bodily injury.

- 2. Carrying, using, actively displaying, or threatening with the use of a firearm facsimile that could reasonably be mistaken for an actual firearm in a school building or in or on school property.
- 3. Declaration as a habitually disruptive student.
- 4. Making an intentionally false accusation of criminal activity against an employee of an educational entity to law enforcement authorities, school district officials or personnel, or both.

The procedures for expulsion, including any due process or rights to a hearing, will be in accordance with DCSD policies on expulsion. Click <u>here</u> for DCSD policies on expulsion and suspension.

#### Student Statements

Except as provided in School policy a School employee will not use in an expulsion hearing a student's statement concerning an act alleged to have been committed by the student regarding:

- Possession of a dangerous weapon without the authorization of the school or the school district; The use, possession, or sale of a drug or controlled substance as defined in section 18-18-102(5), C.R.S.; or The commission of an act that, if committed by an adult, would be robbery pursuant to part 3 of article 4 of title 18, C.R.S., or assault pursuant to part 2 of article 3 of title 18, C.R.S., other than the commission of an act that would be third degree assault under section 18-3-204, C.R.S., if committed by an adult.
  - a. A "dangerous weapon" is defined as a firearm, as defined in section 18-1-901(3)(h), C.R.S.; Any pellet gun, BB gun, or other device, whether operational or not, designed to propel projectiles by spring action or compressed air; A fixed-blade knife with a blade that exceeds three inches in length; A spring-loaded knife or a pocket knife with a blade exceeding three and one-half inches in length; or Any object, device, instrument, material, or substance, whether animate or inanimate, that is used or intended to be used to inflict death or serious bodily injury.

A statement may be used in the expulsion hearing only if it is signed by the student and a parent is present when the student signs the statement or admission; *or* if a reasonable attempt was made to contact the parent to have the parent present when the student signed the statement. The School will be deemed to have made a reasonable attempt to contact the parent if the School calls each of the phone numbers the parent provides to the school and all phone numbers the student provides to the School for the parent.

Further, the student and his or her parent may expressly waive the requirement that the parent be present when a student signs a statement or admission. This express waiver must be in writing and must be obtained only after full advisement of the student and his or her parent of the student's rights prior to the signing of the statement or admission by the student.

The requirements of this policy do not apply if the student makes any deliberate misrepresentations affecting the applicability or requirements of this policy and a School official, acting in good faith and in reasonable reliance on such deliberate misrepresentation, obtains a signed statement or admission of the student that does not comply with the requirements of this policy.

Nothing in this policy will prevent or interfere with a fact-finding or information-gathering investigation by a school or school employee.

#### Items Not Allowed at School

- Weapons of any kind
- Illegal Substances (example: drugs, alcohol, tobacco, pornography, etc.)
- Valuables/large amounts of money/expensive jewelry
- Scooters/skates/skateboards/Heelys cannot be ridden on property and should be kept in student lockers, or in racks provided by the school
- Laser pens/pointers
- Lighters/matches/fireworks
- Flammable liquids/sprays
- Any potentially dangerous item
- Facsimiles- including toy guns, 3D printed guns etc.
- Cameras are not permitted in classrooms without permission of teachers for use as part of a lesson for a specific class. Cell phones with cameras are NOT to be used for taking photos without permission of the teacher.

#### Search and Seizure

It is the policy of the STEM School to maintain school property to assure the safety and enjoyment of students, school employees, and the general public and to extend the useful life of the school facilities.

Students possess the right of privacy as well as freedom from unreasonable search and seizure as guaranteed by the Fourth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution. This individual right, however, is balanced by the School's responsibility to protect the health, safety, and welfare of all its students in order to ensure compliance with school rules. School authorities may conduct searches of property or persons when they have reasonable suspicion that the health, safety, or welfare of students or staff may be endangered. To maintain order and discipline in the School and to protect the safety and welfare of students and school personnel, School authorities may search a student, student lockers, backpacks, bags, desks, or student automobiles under the circumstances outlined below and may seize any illegal, unauthorized, or contraband materials discovered in the search. Searches of these kinds are normally conducted by two appropriate members of the staff. A student's failure to permit searches and seizures as provided in this policy will be considered grounds for disciplinary action.

#### Guidelines for Searches and Seizure

Desks, lockers, textbooks, and other materials or supplies loaned by the school to students remain the property of the school, and may be opened by school employees for cleaning, maintenance, or emergencies. When prohibited items are found in the course of routine cleaning or maintenance, or in the case of emergency, they will be confiscated and a report will be made to the Director who will determine whether further investigation is warranted. A school administrator may search school property whenever a school authority has reasonable grounds to believe that a law or school policy is being violated.

Searches of students' persons, personal effects, or vehicles may be conducted if there is reasonable suspicion to believe that such search will produce evidence of a breach of school policy or law. Search of a student's person will be conducted in the presence of another school employee whenever possible. Search of the student shall be reasonable in scope. During a search, students will turn off their cell phone and place it on the desk or table in front of them. They will not have access to their phone until returned by an administrator or parent/guardian.

Students are permitted to park on school premises as a matter of privilege, not of right. The School retains authority to conduct routine patrols of student parking lots and inspections of the exteriors of student automobiles on School property. The interiors of student vehicles may be inspected whenever a School authority has reasonable suspicion to believe that illegal or unauthorized materials are contained inside. Such patrols and inspections may be conducted without notice, without student consent, and without a search warrant. Searches of these kinds are normally conducted by two appropriate members of the staff.

# **Anonymous Reporting**

STEM School Highlands Ranch uses Safe2Tell as the anonymous reporting option for students and their families.

Safe2Tell Colorado wants every student to know - telling isn't "snitching." Telling is when you need to keep yourself or someone you know safe from threats, harmful behaviors, or dangerous situations.

Not sure if you should use Safe2Tell? If you don't, who will? We need your help to improve our school and community. By calling, you can help stop a friend from committing suicide, get another student off drugs, or stop a bully from making other people miserable. If you have information about these topics, please call.

# Office Procedures and Support

#### Health and Medication

The School follows all applicable DCSD policies regarding student health, medically necessary services, allergies and anaphylaxis, and medication.

#### Hearing and Vision Screenings

The School will conduct hearing and vision screenings required and at the grade levels specified by C.R.S. 22-2-116. The school will make a record of all sight and hearing tests given during the school year and record the individual results of each test on each child's records. The parents or guardian will be informed when the testing results show a deficiency in the student's hearing or vision. A parent or guardian may opt-out of the screenings on religious or personal grounds.

#### Student Immunizations

As required by C.R.S. 25-4-902, and any applicable DCSD policies, a student is not allowed to attend any school in the state of Colorado unless he or she has presented one of the following to the appropriate School official:

- 1. An up-to-date certificate of immunization; or
- 2. A written authorization signed by one parent or legal guardian, an emancipated student, or a student eighteen years of age or older requesting that local public health officials administer the immunizations; or
- A certificate of medical exemption, a certificate of completion of the online education module, or a certificate of nonmedical exemption in compliance with C.R.S. 25-4-903. A certificate of medical exemption, a certificate of completion of the online education module, or a certificate of nonmedical exemption is only valid if completed in compliance with C.R.S. 25-4-903.

If the student's certificate of immunization is not up-to-date according to the requirements of the state board of health, and one of the above exceptions is not met, then within fourteen days after receiving direct personal notification from the School that the certificate is not up-to-date, the student must provide documentation that the next required immunization has been given and a written plan for completion of all required immunizations. If the student begins, but does not continue or complete the written plan, the student will be suspended or expelled pursuant to state law.

Any immunization record provided by a licensed physician, registered nurse, or public health official may be accepted by the School as certification of immunization if the information is transferred to the official certificate of immunization and verified by an appropriate school official.

In the event of suspension or expulsion of a student for failure to comply with immunization requirements, the School will notify the Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment or the county, district, and municipal public health agency. An agent of said department will then contact the parent or guardian or the emancipated student or student eighteen years of age or older in an effort to secure compliance so that the student may be re-enrolled in school.

Additional information about requirements of schools and families regarding immunizations can be found <u>here</u>.

#### Student Fees

View and download the student fees here.

All student fees will be created and collected in accordance with applicable laws and policies, including CRS 22-32-117.

#### Lockers

Every secondary school student has the option of renting a student locker. These lockers are issued clean and it is the student's responsibility to keep them clean and neat during the year. If, during the course of the year, a locker becomes in need of repair, the student should contact the office. Combination locks will be issued to students who pay the rental fee. Lockers and locks will be assigned and registered with the front office. It is the student's responsibility to keep the combination secure. Students should NEVER give their combination to a friend. Lockers will be checked at the end of the school year and fines assessed for any damage. All lockers are the property of the School and may be opened by School authorities at any time for reasonable suspicion that a violation of law or School policy has occurred. Locker sign-up is shared at the start of the school year via a direct message to families.

#### Lost and Found

Articles found in and around the School should be placed on the table outside the cafeteria for each School, where the owners may claim their property. High value lost property (cell phones, etc) should be taken to the front office. Students can claim their property through identification.

\*\*Unclaimed clothing items are donated after Fall Break, Spring Break, and at the end of the year.

#### Messages and Item Drop Off

Items for students may be dropped off at the front office. A table will be made available in the lobby for parents to drop off items such as lunches, homework, projects, etc. for students to retrieve during the day. Items of significant value such as cell phones or laptops should be taken directly to the front desk (and not left on the delivery table). Once an item has been placed on the "drop off table" parents should notify their students via email or text. Students' phones are required to be in cell phone pockets during class, but can be checked during passing periods.

\*\* Retail delivery services are not permitted at STEM for any reason.\*\*

Food Delivery is ONLY available to High School students. Food orders may be ordered and picked up during passing periods and may not intercept any class time.

Food ordered by middle school students will be held in the front office until the school day is over. Any student needing emergency food or lunches will need to communicate with an administrator or member of our office staff.

#### Parent Involvement and Volunteering

STEM School Highlands Ranch is a School of choice. As such, STEM recognizes the value of parental involvement in the School and wishes to provide avenues for parents of STEM students to contribute to the success of STEM. Teachers will provide meaningful opportunities for parents to participate in the classroom.

Please see the STEM policy for parent volunteering.

#### **Visitors**

All visitors must report to the main office before going to any other part of the School. All individuals wishing to enter the School will be required to submit their driver's license or proof of identification to be scanned through the Raptor system prior to entering the building.

Students may not bring a visitor to school for the purpose of attending classes with them. Students who may have a visiting guest in their home and want to show them their school may invite them to have lunch during the regular lunch period.

At times, students may visit our school as prospective students from other schools. The school administration will coordinate the arrangements for these visits with teachers.

#### Parking

Student parking permits are available in the main office for a fee to students who qualify. Students may only park in the Student Parking Lot if they have paid for a parking pass and registered their car with the Secondary Front Office. STEM reserves the right to have any vehicle removed that has not been properly registered. Due to limited parking on site for students, parking passes will be awarded on a lottery basis with upperclassmen getting priority for the parking spots. The Parking Pass lottery will be sent out in July of each year for families to sign up. Parking Passes will be distributed prior to the start of school. Cars parked in unauthorized locations are subject to ticketing. Parking on campus is a privilege and can be revoked at any time.

## Senior Parking Space Painting

Painting of senior parking spaces occurs the week prior to when school starts and is organized by the High School Student Government.

#### Requirements to paint your parking spot:

- Students must purchase their own paint and supplies and be able to paint spots on assigned days
- Approved paint only (details to be shared by the Facilities Director
- Spots will be assigned on a first-come, first-served basis after student check-in
- On painting day, students will check in and wait in line until the parking lot is opened for students to choose their spaces
- Painting cannot take place at any other time
- Cost: \$50 (includes fee for a year-long parking pass) (\$25 additional fee goes toward HS Student Government)
- Each student must complete the Artwork Submission Form and submit a sketch each July, to be approved by the High School Director. The High School Director will approve all sketches and notify students.
- While a student has painted the parking space, it will be difficult to enforce this, so we cannot
  guarantee that a student's space will not be parked in from time to time. If someone parks in a
  student's painted spot, they can check in with the front office to see if the car's owner can be
  contacted to have it moved.
- Students who paint a spot should always use their painted spot

#### Design Criteria:

- No offensive language or gang symbols
- No double meanings
- No nicknames, girlfriend/boyfriend names, etc. (ONLY your own name; if a name is painted on the spot, the student must paint over their name at the end of the school year)
- Must be school-appropriate
- STEM's High School Director must approve the design in advance via the Artwork Submission Form (sent out over the summer)
- Prohibited items will be painted over in black at the administration's discretion, and disciplinary action may be taken
- You are not permitted to deviate from your submitted design nor alter your design at any time without official approval

# Way to Go (School Carpool)

The STEM School Highlands Ranch is partnering with Way to Go: Schoolpool to assist families that are interested in carpooling, walking, and/or biking to and from school with other families. If you are interested in this program please use the secure link that is on our Driveline page of our website.

#### **School Pictures**

Annual school profile pictures will be printed onto a Student ID during the Fall Photo Day session. School profile pictures will be taken during school at the beginning of the year. There will be an opportunity to retake pictures in October of the school year. Elementary students will also have class pictures taken in the spring. Athletics photos will be taken in the Fall and Spring and coordinated by the Athletic Director.

#### Student ID Cards

While on campus, Middle and HIgh School students are REQUIRED to wear their student identification cards at all times. Middle and High School students are issued photograph identification cards at the beginning of each school year. Identification cards are used for student identification purposes, such as entrance to special events, evening activities and sporting events, checkout of materials, etc. Students not wearing ID badges are subject to consequences determined by the secondary administration.

Replacement Cards are available via the QR codes on school hallway and office televisions. The first replacement is free. Any additional replacements are \$5 each and will be charged to the student's MySchoolBucks account.

Students not wearing their ID badges are subject to school disciplinary action.

## **Curriculum and Academics**

#### **Problem Based Learning**

Problem Based Learning is the core of our program model because it drives the students to engage in real-world solutions that do good in the world, ultimately helping shape their identity as they discover their strengths and passions.

Throughout their instruction, students learn about a problem, ask questions, research, brainstorm solutions, test, analyze and take action, all while learning the state standards. Students access background knowledge and investigate standards, which are aligned concepts that help solve the problem.

STEM's Instructional Model encourages peer collaboration, critical thinking and creativity, all while learning responsible use of technology. Students learn content as they investigate real problems. They engage in a rigorous, extended process of posing questions, finding resources, and applying information to develop realistic possible solutions. Students share these solutions to the public and take action outside of the classroom to make meaningful change.

Working with industry leaders, students find new ways to collaborate and seek new solutions.

### Standards Based Grading

Standards Based grading is the process of reporting a student's status on each priority standard based on proficiency scale levels. Standards Based reporting occurs by figuring a summative score for each priority standard that is taught during a reporting period. In Standards Based reporting a student may or may not be proficient in all the priority standards when they progress to the next grade level or course.

#### Rationale and Benefits of SBG:

Standards-based grading offers a more precise and equitable way to measure student learning, emphasizing mastery and continuous improvement. By providing clear, detailed feedback and focusing on individual learning goals, SBG helps to create a more supportive and effective educational environment.

- Increases Student Preparedness
- Focuses on Mastery
- Provides Clarity and Transparency
- Additional Accountability
- Informs Instructional Decisions
- Enhances Communication
- Increases Motivation and Engagement
- Consistent with Best Practice

The field of education is moving towards this type of grading system due to the increased ability of teachers to personalize learning based on student needs and performance. The traditional grading system has not evolved in over 100 years, and it is time to incorporate a grading system that is focused on individual student learning.

At STEM School Highlands Ranch, we will report final grades as follows:

- K-5 will be reporting out final grades as a 4,3,2,1
- 6-12 will report converted final grades using A-F

#### Field Trips

Students have the opportunity to participate in a variety of field trips. Most field trips are for one day, but there are grade level overnight field trips. Students who ride the bus to a field trip location must return to School on the bus, unless a parent chaperone is in attendance and follows School policies related to sign out procedures.

Students must represent STEM School Highlands Ranch with safe, respectful, and responsible behavior. Field trips are a privilege. Students struggling to regularly demonstrate STEM's character values may not be permitted to attend class, grade level, and team field trips. Teachers may, at their

discretion, permit these students to attend a field trip provided that the student's parent(s) accompany him/her on the field trip.

Students who will not be participating in a field trip activity, whether it is a one-day field trip or an overnight field trip, are still required to attend School. Teachers will arrange for students who are not attending a field trip to work in an alternate classroom during the school day. Students who do not attend on the day(s) of a field trip will accrue unexcused absences for the day(s) that they miss.

When field trips occur midday, students must attend classes before and/or after the trip. When field trips return after the end of the school day parents must pick up students promptly after field trips, following our standard pick up expectations. Parents attending field trips must be cleared through a background check and receive a Raptor badge from the School, before doing so. Please see Volunteers and Chaperones, for additional information.

#### Academic Honesty and Integrity

Administration, faculty and staff at Stem School Highlands Ranch strive to provide diverse opportunities in a safe, caring, and challenging environment. Our School community encourages respect and responsibility, fosters creativity, and promotes stewardship and a commitment to excellence. Students are expected to turn in work that is their own. When students turn in work that is not their own, assist others in doing so, or deliberately hinder their classmates' learning, they violate the integrity we strive for as an academic community.

These types of dishonesty are not only counterproductive to our mission, but are also illegal in certain circumstances. Understanding that the following may not illustrate every possible circumstance of academic dishonesty, Stem School Highlands Ranch defines academic dishonesty as the following:

- Plagiarism, which is defined as the presentation of another person's language, ideas, or thoughts as one's own work in the preparation of a paper, laboratory report, examination, oral presentation, or homework. This includes information downloaded from the Internet or otherwise shared electronically, as well as the use of AI bots.
- Dishonest conduct during a quiz, test, exam, or other assessment
- Copying another student's work or allowing another student to copy your work (except when told to do so by a teacher, i.e. notes from a missed class)
- Taking another student's computer or personal item without permission
- Taking a non-circulating book out of a classroom without permission
- Altering a file on a "groups" server folder, therefore potentially interfering with another student's ability to complete an assignment

If a student participates in any of the above actions or other action deemed a violation by a teacher, the following disciplinary action(s) may be taken:

- A meeting with the Director of the School most appropriate for the student's grade level, student, the student's parents and teacher to discuss the violation
- Students may be required to re-do the assignment
- Students may be required to re-do copied work
- Students may be assigned to detention for taking books and materials without permission
- Students may be required to retake a guiz, test, exam or other assessment
- Students may lose technology privileges if they interfere with server folders, access inappropriate sites, or interfere with any Infinite Campus application
- For high school students, a second offense of academic dishonesty in an academic year may result in an "F" in the course for the semester
- Please note that in extraneous circumstances, additional action may be taken as determined by the STEM administration

#### State Assessments and Opt-Out

State and federal law requires students to take standardized assessments in the instructional areas of English language arts, math, and science. State law also requires students in elementary and middle school to take standardized assessments in the instructional area of social studies. Accordingly, the School will administer standardized assessments pursuant to these state and federal legal requirements.

#### Pencil and paper testing option

Pursuant to C.R.S. 22-7-1013(6), the School may determine that a specific classroom or school will use pencil and paper to complete the computerized portions of a state assessment. Factors that will be considered in making this determination include: the technological capacity and resources of the particular school/classroom; the students' previous experience with computerized and written assessments; whether the instructional methodology of the particular school/classroom is consistent with the use of computerized assessments or written assessments; and the logistics of administering the state assessment in different formats in a particular school or classroom.

Prior to making this determination, the Executive Director will consult with the Principal, as well as parents/guardians or other relevant parties.

For students with disabilities, the use of pencil and paper instead of a computer to complete a state assessment will be determined by the student's Individualized Education Program (IEP) team or Section 504 team, in accordance with applicable law.

#### Parent Opt-Out

A parent may opt-out his or her student from a particular state assessment by notifying the School principal in writing or by completing an opt-out form available in the front office. A parent will not be required to state the reason for opting-out. The opt-out may apply to all or specific state assessments administered to the student during the school year. Any opt-out will be valid for one school year.

Parents/guardians are encouraged to submit their requests for exemption at the earliest possible date each school year so that the School may plan accordingly.

This opt-out process applies only to state assessments administered pursuant to C.R.S. 22-7-1006.3 and does not apply to other School or classroom assessments.

In accordance with C.R.S. 22-7-1013(8)(b), the School will not impose a negative consequence on a student who is opted-out of state assessments. Students will not be prohibited from participating in any School activities, extra-curriculars, or similar; or from receiving any other form of reward that the School provides to students for participating in the state assessment. The School will not impose an unreasonable burden or requirement on a student that would discourage the student from taking a state assessment or encourage the student's parent to opt-out the student from taking the state assessment

#### Assessment Notification

The School will annually distribute to the parents of students an assessment calendar. At a minimum, the assessment calendar will specify the estimated hours each testing day that specific classes or grades will take each assessment and identify whether the assessment is required by federal law or state law or selected by the School.

In addition to the calendar, the School will provide written information to parents that describes the state and local assessments that the School will administer during the school year, identifying the assessments that the School is required by federal law to administer, any additional state assessments that the School is required by section 22-7-1006.3 to administer, the assessments that the School is required by other state law to administer, and the additional assessments that the School chooses to administer; the anticipated calendar for administering the state and local assessments during the school year; and the purposes of the state assessments administered pursuant to section 22-7-1006.3 and any additional local assessments that the School administers and the manner in which the department of education and the local education provider uses the assessment results.

The provisions of this policy do not apply to course-specific assessments that are not adopted by the state board of education pursuant to section 22-7-1006 or to nonstandardized, classroom-based assessments that individual educators choose to administer to students.

The calendar and additional assessment information will be available to parents at the beginning of each school year in the front office and posted on the School's website.

#### School Related Student Publications

The School recognizes that in any of its school sponsored publications, like a school newspaper, that students, with certain limitations prescribed herein, are free to express their views. The School encourages and teaches students to observe the rules for responsible journalism, and requires

compliance with this policy and applicable laws. If a publication written substantially by students is made generally available throughout the School, it will be considered a public forum for students.

Students are prohibited from publication or distribution in any the following:

- 1. Expression that is obscene
- 2. Expression that is libelous, slanderous, or defamatory under state law
- 3. Expression that is false as to any person who is not a public figure or involved in a matter of public concern
- 4. Expression that creates a clear and present danger of the commission of unlawful acts, the violation of lawful School regulations, promotion of street gangs, or the material and substantial disruption of the orderly operation of the School or that violates the rights of others to privacy or that threatens violence to property or persons.

The School may further provide for appropriate time, place, and manner restrictions on student expression within the School.

Student editors of school-sponsored student publications are responsible for determining the news, opinion, and advertising content of their publications subject to the limitations of this policy. The teacher/advisor of the school-sponsored student publications will supervise the production of such publications, teach and encourage free and responsible expression and professional standards for English and journalism.

If participation in a school-sponsored publication is part of a school class or activity for which grades or school credits are given, the provisions of this policy should not be interpreted to interfere with the authority of the teacher/advisor for such school-sponsored publication to establish or limit writing assignments for the students working with the publication and to otherwise direct and control the learning experience that the publication is intended to provide.

No expression made by students in the exercise of freedom of speech or freedom of the press shall be deemed to be an expression of School policy, and no school district or employee, or parent, or legal guardian, or official of such school district shall be held liable in any civil or criminal action for any expression made or published by students. Such publications shall contain a disclaimer that expression made by students in those publications is not an expression of School policy, that the views expressed are not necessarily shared by the School and that the School and its employees are immune from any civil or criminal action based on any expression made or published by students.

# **Activity Eligibility**

Enrichment, clubs, activities, and athletics are a privilege for students. Participation in these is not guaranteed. Students must follow these guidelines:

They must be in attendance during the school day that the club or team is meeting

- For all non CHSAA clubs, grade checks will be every 6 weeks. Any students with 2 or more F's
  will not be allowed to participate in the club until they have a signed letter from the teacher
  stating that they have raised their grade
- For CHSAA athletics, please see the Athletic Director for the CHSAA requirements
- If a student becomes ineligible, fees will not be refunded

#### **Athletics**

At STEM, our focus is on academics, just as "student" is the first word in "student athlete." Yet, athletics and activities are privileges that students are encouraged to participate in. In order for each student athlete to be eligible to participate in his or her chosen sport/activity, he or she must maintain a grade of at least "C (2)" in all core classes (Science, Computer Science, Engineering, Mathematics, English, Social Studies) and cannot be failing any class that student is enrolled in. Weekly grade checks will be completed based on the process included below, and any academically ineligible students will not be allowed to participate until the next grade check occurs AND the grades are all "C (2)" or higher. One "D (1)" grade will constitute suspension of practice and game privileges until the grade is brought up. A combination of "F (1)" grades and "D (1)" grades may result in the suspension/dismissal from the team until the grades are brought up or for the remainder of the season.

Eligibility will be checked weekly during the season. The Athletic Director, or a representative, will contact teachers to inquire about any students on the team who do not have at least a grade of "C (2)" in a class. The student will remain ineligible until he/she can prove to the coach and/or Athletic Director that he/she is passing the class. This can be provided by each respective teacher in the form of an email or handwritten note, and must be received by the coach prior to the student's reinstated eligibility. "Word of mouth," and notes or emails from parents or the students themselves are not acceptable forms of proof.

In the event that a student cannot participate in an activity due to academic ineligibility, there will be no refund of fees for that activity.

A School administrator shall have the authority to declare a student ineligible based on inappropriate behavior, detention, excessive absences, suspension, or expulsion.

#### Canvas

Canvas is STEM's Learning Management System. STEM educators use Canvas to create assignments, assessments, and record student progress. Canvas provides academic feedback to our students and parents.

Parents can use Canvas to stay informed of their student's grades and missing assignments. Grades for completed work, and indications of missing work will be posted on the Canvas site. Please allow teachers sufficient time to assign grades for each assignment. Once an assignment has been turned

in, or the test is taken, the grades should be posted within two business days depending on the length of the assignment.

Elementary classrooms will communicate major assignments, projects, and problem based learning experiences, to students and parents. Not every assignment will necessarily be posted as hands on learning experiences may not have the ability to be uploaded. Please reach out to the classroom teacher if you have questions.

Kindergarten, First and Second Grade classrooms utilize Google Classroom in place of Canvas.

#### **Homework Expectations**

Homework is designed to provide students with an important opportunity to practice and to extend what they are learning. The amount of homework will vary based on the grade level, unit, the student's own work habits, and the appropriate use of class time. Here is a general guideline:

- Elementary- 20-30 minutes per day
- Middle School- 20 minutes per class per day
- High School- 20-30 minutes per class per day

Honors/accelerated, concurrent enrollment and AP classes may have additional requirements as determined by the instructor.

If a middle school student is enrolled in a high school level course (or a high school student in a middle school level course) the homework expectations are for the level of the class, not the grade level of the student.

#### Make Up Work

For excused absences, students have two full days for every day missed to turn in their assignments. This means that if a student is excused and misses on a Tuesday, they can catch up on their work on Wednesday and Thursday, and all assignments are due as their classes meet on Friday. If a student is excused and misses on a Thursday, their assignments are due as their classes meet on Tuesday (weekend days are not counted.)

Students have the responsibility to remind their teachers that they were excused and absent, and to check their teachers' Canvas pages for assignments and assessments that were due during their absence. Students have the responsibility to work with their teachers to set times and dates to make up specific tests and quizzes, and to arrange for alternate assignments if appropriate.

Teachers have the responsibility to inform the student about the assignments, quizzes and tests given during excused absences by maintaining this information on their class websites or Canvas calendar.

Teachers may modify assignments and due dates at their discretion.

Parents are encouraged to pick up work assignments from their child's teachers so that students who are home sick can begin to catch up as soon as possible.

#### Late Assignments

Completing assignments on time is not simply to keep the course moving on schedule; it is to ensure that students have done the work to learn the current content of the class, before they move on to the next topic. When students fall behind they are not always able to learn the new material as effectively or efficiently. Late assignments are graded with the typical expectations of the assignment.

#### For Regular Assignments

Regular assignments should be submitted by the due date to ensure the understanding of material prior to moving on to more complex tasks.

#### For Problem Based Learning Assignments

Problem based learning activities sometimes culminate in presentations, evaluation by professionals, or other events. In these cases students may be required to present on specific days without the opportunity for extended due dates, or make arrangements with the teacher.

#### **Exceptions: AP and Concurrent Enrollment**

All classes at STEM may follow these policies except for courses taken for Concurrent College Credit, such as Concurrent Enrollment courses through Arapahoe Community College or other institutions of higher learning and AP classes, in which case the instructor may provide alternatives in keeping with the college-level work of the course. Courses taken under the direction of another institution will follow that institution's policies. Extenuating circumstances, either from the teacher's perspective or from the student's may occur which require adjustments to these policies on a rare and case-by-case basis.

Not all 504 or IEP accommodations transfer over to ACC and other institutions of higher learning. Students and parents must provide ACC and other institutions of higher learning a copy of the student's accommodations.

## Graduation Requirements and Participation in Graduation Exercises

In order to graduate, and also to participate in graduation exercises students must meet all of the following:

- Successfully complete all of the "academic requirements," as in the <u>Academic Planning Guide</u>, including correspondence and other out-of-school coursework no later than forty-eight hours prior to graduation exercises;
- 2. Be a full time student (as defined as taking the equivalent of six classes per semester which are transcripted through a district school)

- 3. Completion of 20 hours of community service
- 4. Completion of ICAP
- 5. Wear, without alteration, the designated cap and gown and must have appearance and dress that conforms with standards established by the Board of Education and/or building Director for the student's grade level, except students are allowed to wear objects of cultural or religious significance as an adornment at a graduation ceremony unless it is likely to cause substantial disruption of, or material interference with, a graduation ceremony
- 6. Demonstrate behavior (during the semester prior to graduation) deemed by the Building Director for the student's grade level, to be compatible with the district's Responsible Citizenship Expectations and, as described in IKF-R-1;
- 7. Cooperate fully with the School's staff during all school sponsored senior activities, including graduation exercises; and,
- 8. Return all school/district property and clear all outstanding debts owed the School.

#### **Progress Reports**

Reports of academic progress will be issued by teachers as a tool to both inform parents and students on student class performance and to encourage communication between parents/students and teachers. At a minimum, parents will receive progress reports during parent conferences (October/March). Parents and students are encouraged to use Canvas to regularly monitor student performance in all classes.

#### Promotion/Retention Requirements

If a middle school student does not pass three or more core classes (Science, English, Social Studies, Engineering/Technology and/or Math) they are at risk of retention. Retention warnings will be issued at the end of the second and third quarters. The administrative team of the STEM School Highlands Ranch makes final retention decisions. High school students must retake or otherwise fulfill coursework as needed to meet STEM Graduation Requirements. Students at risk of retention should be brought to the attention of the Student Support Team for further intervention discussion.

#### **READ Act Requirements**

If within forty-five days before the end of any school year prior to a student's fourth-grade year, a teacher finds that a student has a significant reading deficiency, the School will provide to the student's parent written notice that there are serious implications to a student entering fourth grade with a significant reading deficiency and, therefore, under state law, the parent, the student's teacher, and other personnel of the School are required to meet and consider retention as an intervention strategy and determine whether the student, despite having a significant reading deficiency, is able to maintain adequate academic progress at the next grade level. The School will work with the parent to schedule a date, time, and place for the meeting and if the parent does not attend the meeting, the

teacher and personnel of the School will decide whether the student will advance to the next grade level in the next school year.

If, after making documented attempts to schedule the meeting with the parent, School personnel are unable to schedule the meeting, or if the parent does not attend the scheduled meeting, the teacher and personnel selected by the School will decide, based on the student's body of evidence, whether the student will advance to the next grade level for the next school year.

To learn more about Read Act Requirements, please click here.

#### Honor Roll

Middle School students who attain Honor Roll status will be recognized at an Awards Ceremony each semester. Honor roll status will be at three levels: Honors, High Honors, and Highest Honors.

- For a Middle School student to attain Honor Roll, the student's GPA must be between 3.25 and 3.50.
- For a Middle School student to attain High Honors, the student's GPA must be between 3.50 and 3.75.
- For a Middle School student to attain Highest Honors, the student's GPA must be between 3.75 and 4.0.

#### Academic Letter

STEM School Highlands Ranch is focused on rewarding Academic Excellence among students. We are excited to announce that students will be recognized through the Academic Letter Recognition Program. The criteria for earning an Academic Letter is as follows:

Students must achieve a grade point average of 3.8 or above for two consecutive semesters while attending STEM School Highlands Ranch. The recipient of the award will receive an Academic Letter after the first year of earning this accomplishment. A student that achieves this accomplishment for a second year will receive an academic pin. Academic bars are given for subsequent years.

# Instructional Technology

#### Apps and Resources

Teachers utilize a variety of instructional technology applications and websites to support student learning within classrooms. Apps and web resources are vetted through a School process and in accordance with <a href="HB 16-1423">HB 16-1423</a>. Additional information related to this can be found on the School website under Student Data Privacy. Each year, teachers will communicate and provide families with information regarding apps and/ or websites utilized as part of our School wide instructional model.

#### School Issued computers

STEM purchases computers to be used by K-6. School issued computers are expected to be used in accordance with the policies set forth in this document. Students should use common sense when using and handling their computers. Students are responsible to bring a fully charged computer to school each day. Students may bring battery chargers to school. Computers must not be left unattended. Found computers should be delivered to the main office. Students must contact IT staff for repairs and not attempt to do so on their own.

Parents/guardians will assume any financial responsibility for damages not covered by warranty. Repairs to a student issued computers made necessary by inappropriate handling or treatment will be billed to the family based upon the severity of the situation. Repair costs vary and will range up to the full replacement cost of the unit as determined by the Director of Technology.

# **Cell Phone Expectations**

The respectful, non-disruptive use of cell phones is permitted in the school cafeteria during lunch period. As soon as the threshold of the classroom or any prohibited area is crossed during the school day, cell phones need to be put away in the cell phone pocket of the classroom or the student's backpack in the cafeteria and made undetectable (i.e., silenced without vibration).

#### Guidelines:

- The use of cell phones during the school day is a privilege and its use is at the discretion of administration.
- Cell phones and all functions within the cell phone (i.e. cameras and all other applications) are
  prohibited in the following areas unless expressly permitted by a staff member for educational
  purposes: Classrooms, Restrooms, all Physical Education Areas, Counseling Offices, and all
  School Office Areas.
- Upon entrance to each class, students must turn off their cell phone and place it in the
  designated cell phone pocket. Upon entering the study hall, students must turn off their cell
  phones and place them in their backpack.
- Students using cell phones in any manner that disrupts the educational environment, from within or from outside the classroom, or violates the rights of others, including, but not limited to, using the device in violation of our academic honesty policy, violating school conduct rules, harassing or bullying staff or students, photographing or video recording, or using their device for unlawful purposes will be subject to more severe disciplinary action, up to and including suspension and/or expulsion and may, if applicable, be reported to the DCSD Sheriff's Department.

Violation of the cell phone rule as stated above will result in the confiscation of the device according to the following ladder of disciplinary action:

#### First offense:

- The student's cell phone will be confiscated by a faculty member who will have a restorative conversation with the student. The conversation will include a review of the cell phone expectations.
- 2. The faculty member will hold the phone until the end of class.

#### Second offense:

- 1. The student's cell phone will be confiscated and held in the main office cell phone jail until the end of the day.
- 2. The student's parents will be contacted and informed.

#### Third offense:

- 1. The student's cell phone will be confiscated and held in the main office until the student's parents are able to come to pick it up.
- 2. The student will receive detention.
- 3. The student will be prohibited from bringing their phone to school OR required to check their phone in/out for <u>two weeks</u>.
- 4. Behavior will be documented in IC.

#### Fourth and Final offense:

- 1. The student's cell phone will be confiscated and held in the main office until the student's parents are able to come to pick it up.
- 2. The student will receive two days of detention.
- 3. The student will be prohibited from bringing their phone to school OR required to check their phone in/out for the remainder of the semester.
- 4. Behavior will be documented in IC.

Please note that the School nor any of its employees are responsible for the loss or damage to any student's phone or electronic device whether that device is in the student's possession or confiscated by the staff. It is the responsibility of the student to adhere to these expectations and to secure their belongings at all times. Classes and or instruction will not be stopped to deal with or search for lost phones/devices.

\*\*The administration reserves the right to adjust these consequences on a case-by-case basis if needed. For example, extreme behaviors that break the law or engage in bullying or harassment of other students may result in suspension.

### Netiquette (Internet Étiquette)

• Appropriate Internet and/or electronic communication is imperative in today's professional and personal wireless environment.

#### Social Media:

Students are subject to the following specific rules related to social media, to the extent there is a nexus between the social media use and school:

- Use Appropriate Language Obscene, insulting, threatening, derogatory, inflammatory and bullying language is not appropriate and almost always detracts from your ideas.
- Respect the Power of Public Media Honor the wishes of fellow students that information (e.g., compromising stories) be kept private. Always remember that posted information may seem private, but is highly public.
- Do Not Spam Meaningless, mass and repetitive messages are not appropriate.
- Read, then Reply Do not skim statements and respond. Understand the thoughts of another before you comment on them.
- Do Not Hack Never access another person's identity or account, or restricted sources of information.
- Communication with Teachers Teachers are not permitted to use non-school media to communicate with students and/or parents about school related matters.
- Discourage Rumors Do not rely upon or pass on unsubstantiated information or gossip. If information seems unlikely and inflammatory, it is most likely untrue and inflammatory. When in doubt, go directly to the source.
- Respect Confidentiality Many personnel issues and many issues involving other families and students are legitimately confidential (and many are confidential by law). If you would not want information about your job or your child made public, do not make or expect to see in public such information about others.
- Debate Issues Constructively Schools often face legitimate controversies. STEM School
  Highlands Ranch respects and solicits parent voices in addressing such issues. Effective
  arguments are usually civil, measured, well-supported and take into account the legitimate
  reasons for opposing views. Ineffective arguments are abusive, disrespectful of others, and
  marked by hyperbole or factual carelessness.

#### Consequences

If it is determined that social media behaviors, at any time, are affecting the learning environment then consequences may be administered.

### Technology Acceptable Use Expectations

These expectations were developed in accordance with the STEM School Highlands Ranch effort to graduate students of honor and integrity and to encourage those students to use resources in an ethical and responsible manner. It is the intent of STEM to provide the student with guidelines on appropriate use of the school network, the Internet, and e-mail. Students are expected to use all technology not only lawfully, but also with respect, responsibility, honesty, and integrity. Inappropriate or unapproved use of technology may result in a loss of technology privileges and/or disciplinary action, as determined necessary by the administration.

### **Classroom Technology Monitoring**

The use of educational technology is central to the mission of the STEM School Highlands Ranch. In order to optimize on-task time in the classroom and facilitate better teacher oversight of usage, STEM may utilize technology-monitoring software. Each student enrolled at STEM will be required to have technology monitoring software installed on any device used to access the school-provided network, and internet, and as a result students should have no expectation of privacy when utilizing those resources. Students who intentionally misuse technology to trigger monitoring software, which then requires administrative and/or other staff support to intervene, will face disciplinary action.

If information on a student-owned device is relevant to activities at the School or Enrichment, meaning that it supports the assignments, assessments, projects, and other classroom activities or related homework, or is related to clubs, or Enrichment programs, then the material can be considered relevant to the School or the Enrichment and it can be reviewed, monitored, assessed, collected, and stored by teachers, staff, and Enrichment coaches for only so long as School or Enrichment policies require.

While in the classroom or other parts of the School and Enrichment, student devices may be monitored to ensure that the student is attending satisfactorily to the classroom or program activities at any given time. Teachers and staff may only monitor the student's activities to ascertain that the student is or is not appropriately focused. If the student is not, the teacher should correct the situation. If a teacher or staff member believes that such information has been collected either intentionally or unintentionally they must inform the Director of the student's grade level immediately so that the situation can be reviewed and corrected. Failure to do so may result in disciplinary action.

# Information Technology

#### I. PURPOSE.

To support its educational mission, STEM School Highlands Ranch may provide information technology ("IT"), such as computers, networks, Internet access, and electronic-mail accounts, to its

students. The STEM Board believes that IT should be used at STEM as a learning resource to educate and to inform, and that STEM and parents have an obligation to teach our students to be responsible IT users.

Subject to this policy, STEM staff shall be free to select and implement IT which STEM, deems best furthers the STEM mission.

While parents and students themselves are ultimately responsible for student behavior at school and student use of STEM IT, the School will make every reasonable effort to ensure that students use STEM IT appropriately and responsibly. To this end, the School has implemented content filtering measures that direct student learning and restrict student access to inappropriate material, in accordance with applicable law. Administrators, teachers, and staff have a professional responsibility to work together and with parents to help students develop the intellectual skills needed to evaluate and choose information sources, to identify information appropriate to the age and developmental levels of the students, and to evaluate and use information to meet their educational goals.

To learn more about STEM's IT Board Policies, click the links below.

Student Data Privacy
Student Data Transparency

## Student Support

The mission of the Student Support Team at STEM School Highlands Ranch is to provide every student with the opportunity to learn, grow and thrive in an environment that is safe, challenging and nurturing. We are dedicated to helping the entire student body reach their full potential while feeling empowered, respected and supported.

The Student Support Team at STEM School Highlands Ranch is made up of highly trained and licensed professionals dedicated to serving our students across a range of areas to include Special Education, Section 504, English Language Development, Mental Health, Multi-Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS), and academic support.

Our diverse team includes learning specialists, educational assistants, counselors, speech-language pathologists, English Language Development teachers, an occupational therapist, a behavior specialist, a social worker, a psychologist, an IEP & Assessment Specialist, and an MTSS Coordinator. Together, we collaborate to empower every student to achieve their highest potential academically, socially, and emotionally.

### **Special Education**

As required by applicable federal and state laws, the School is committed to provide appropriate educational opportunities to students with disabilities. If a parent believes that their child may have a disability that qualifies for special education services he or she is encouraged to contact the School in

writing, and confirm the School is in receipt thereof, to request an evaluation for special education services.

Any student identified as qualifying for special education services pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act (the IDEA) until age 21 if the student has not been awarded a regular high school diploma and graduated from high school has the right to a free appropriate public education. Eligible students with disabilities shall be provided individualized programs that offer a Free and Appropriate Public Education, as determined by the student's Individualized Education Program (IEP) team.

The School will develop additional policies or utilize the policies of its Administrative Unit, DCSD, in meeting its obligations under IDEA.

### Multi-Tiered System of Support (MTSS)

At STEM School Highlands Ranch, we implement the Multi-Tiered System of Support (MTSS), a proactive framework centered on collaborative, data-driven problem-solving to enhance student outcomes. Through partnerships with families, schools, and the community, MTSS leverages a tiered continuum of evidence-based practices.

Our MTSS approach at STEM identifies student challenges early and employs research-backed interventions to foster improved academic and behavioral outcomes. Led by our dedicated MTSS Coordinator, in collaboration with teachers and intervention specialists such as our Behavior Interventionist, we strategically plan and deliver interventions tailored to student needs.

STEM School Highlands Ranch offers comprehensive special education services tailored to mild to moderate disabilities, encompassing Specific Learning Disabilities, Speech or Language Impairment, Other Health Impairment, Autism Spectrum Disorder, and more.

At the elementary level, our team includes learning specialists and educational assistants dedicated to providing specialized learning support. Additionally, we have a speech-language pathologist, occupational therapist, social worker, and behavior interventionist to ensure holistic care and development.

At the secondary level, our resources expand to include learning specialists for middle school and high school, as well as three educational assistants. We continue to provide essential services through a speech-language pathologist, occupational therapist, and a social worker/psychologist, ensuring comprehensive support throughout students' educational journeys.

### **English Language Development**

In accordance with applicable state and federal laws, the School is committed to providing educational opportunities to those students with limited English proficiency. The School will provide

appropriate, research-based language instructional programs for all identified English language learners in accordance with the requirements of applicable laws and regulations.

The School will identify students as English language learners by administering a home language survey and using the state-approved assessment for English language proficiency. Identified students shall be assessed annually to determine their level of proficiency in the English language. The School will certify to the Colorado Department of Education each year those students identified as English language learners and provide additional information as required to comply with applicable law.

The School will also comply with all applicable laws and regulations to ensure meaningful communication with limited English proficient parents, including providing interpretation or translation services as necessary.

English Language Development (ELD) is a systematic method designed to equip English Language Learners with the essential skills required to achieve proficiency in English. This encompasses fostering proficiency in listening, speaking, reading, and writing, alongside supporting their academic advancement across various subjects.

#### Section 504

In compliance with the federal law known as Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the School will provide to each student with a qualifying disability, without discrimination or cost to the student or family, those related supplementary support services or accommodations which are needed to provide equal opportunity to participate in and obtain the benefits of the school program and extracurricular activities to the maximum extent appropriate to the person's abilities and to the extent required by applicable law.

In order to qualify as a student with a disability, the student must have a physical or mental disability which substantially limits one or more life activities, as defined under applicable laws and regulations, or prohibits participation in or access to an aspect of the school program. In addition, one who in the past has had such a disability or is perceived by others as having such a disability may also be protected by law from discrimination on the basis of disability.

Even students who are not eligible to receive services under the traditional special education programs, which are provided pursuant to the IDEA, may be eligible to receive supplementary support, services, and accommodations, if they fall within the definition of disability under Section 504.

For further information about the evaluation procedures and provisions of services to students with disabilities, contact the Director of Student Support Services.

#### Gifted and Talented Education

The School is dedicated to providing comprehensive programming for the identification and education of gifted students who are between the ages of four and up to age twenty-one whose abilities, talents, and potential for accomplishment qualify him or her in one or more of the following categories:

- 1. General or specific intellectual ability
- 2. Specific academic aptitude
- 3. Creative or productive thinking
- 4. Leadership abilities
- 5. Visual arts, performing arts, musical or psychomotor abilities

Once a student is identified an individualized Advanced Learning Plan (ALP) will be developed. The ALP will describe the type of programming services that will be provided to meet the unique educational needs of the student.

The School will develop additional policies or utilize the policies of its Administrative Unit, DCSD, in meeting its obligations under applicable laws and regulations related to gifted and talented students.

### **Secondary Counseling**

STEM employs dedicated Professional School Counselors at the high school level, and at the middle school level. Professional School Counselors play a pivotal role in the creation and implementation of the three prongs within a professional school counseling program: academic, career and social/emotional development. They work with students to develop a pathway towards graduation, while preparing students for post-secondary options. Additionally, our Professional School Counselors support students' social/emotional growth and are the point of contact for responsive care during crises and student emergencies.

In addition to our Professional School Counselors, STEM employs a College Counselor and a Career Discovery Professional who are an integral part of the Comprehensive Counseling Team to help our students achieve their post-secondary goals.

For additional information and/or support with your child's needs, please contact their teacher, administrator or the Director of Student Support Services.

### **Enrichment**

STEM School Highlands Ranch has a robust enrichment program that extends student learning opportunities after the traditional school day.

STEM Enrichment is open to all students in the South Metro Denver area with priority placements given to students at STEM School Highlands Ranch.

Students who are participating in any before or after school activity MUST:

- Register for the activity and have parents' permission
- Report promptly to the activity
- Bring all personal items to the activity with them
- Not leave the building unless signed out of the activity
- Leave the building promptly at the conclusion of the activity

In accordance with STEM School Highlands Ranch policy, STEM School Highlands Ranch students will not be allowed to stay in the school building after school or before school if they are not enrolled in an enrichment class, BASE (Before and After School Enterprise) or STEM Enrichment activity. Students who are not participating in an after-school activity must leave the school building immediately at the end of the academic day. See Arrival and Departure below.

An ever-changing slate of programs is being offered to meet the needs and desires of STEM students and feedback is always welcomed and encouraged.

# **School Day Procedures**

## Arrival and Departure

## Secondary Students

Please refer to the Bell Schedule for arrival and departure times. Secondary students enrolled in a first period class may access the Secondary Entrance at 7:30 a.m. Secondary Students arriving prior to 7:30 am may access the building through the Athletic Entrance beginning at 7:10am. Students will not be permitted into the hallways until 7:30 am. Middle and High School staff members are on duty from 7:30 a.m. – 3:45 p.m. Please note that some teachers may be on an "alternative schedule" meaning that they either teach a first or tenth period class. In this event, please contact that teacher directly for their designated office hours. Students are expected to leave campus after the final bell sounds unless they have permission to remain on campus (e.g.,Office Hours, Homework Club, BASE, Enrichment activity, or class, etc.). Middle and High School students are not to remain on campus past 3:15 p.m. unless under the direct supervision of a staff member. Please see the Late Pick-Up Policy below.

### **Elementary Students**

Elementary students may be dropped off at the Elementary driveline starting at 7:10am. Elementary staff members are on duty from 7:10 a.m. - 3:30 p.m. Elementary students must line up in their designated class area. Teachers will pick up their students at 7:30am from the driveline. Elementary students arriving after 7:40am will need to be signed in by their parent and/or guardian and are marked as tardy. Elementary students must be picked up when their grade levels are released and at the designated pick up times. Students riding home in a car must be picked up at school by 3:15 p.m. Students who remain after 3:15 p.m. will be subject to the late pickup fees and policy. Parents should remain in their vehicle when picking up their student(s) and must follow all driveline procedures in order to ensure and maintain safety protocol.

### Late Pick-Up Policy

Student safety is the highest priority of the STEM School in Highlands Ranch. Therefore, we make every effort to ensure that all students are under appropriate supervision until they return to you at the end of their school day.

For that reason, we are concerned about students who are left after dismissal time or who are dropped over early in the morning. The school is not, and cannot, be staffed to provide supervision for students in these situations; hiring extra personnel to supervise is beyond our financial resources. In addition, children can feel confused and apprehensive when they are not picked up on time. We recommend that families utilize the BASE program, a state-licensed after school program for students under the age of 12.

Elementary students without secondary siblings must be picked up within 20 minutes of dismissal.

Kindergarten and First Graders are dismissed at 2:25. Any Kindergarten or 1st grade students, without a secondary sibling, will be charged \$1.00 per minute after 2:45.

Second through Fifth Graders are dismissed at 2:35 p.m. Any 2nd through 5th grade students, without a secondary sibling, will be charged \$1.00 per minute after 2:55.

Any elementary students with a secondary sibling must be picked up by 3:15, or will incur a \$1.00 per minute charge in their myschoolbucks account.

Any middle school student not picked up by 3:15, or in a designated supervised club will be directed to Middle School After School Care and will incur the fees outlined by the Aftercare Program.

Any students staying after school for any reason (i.e. Enrichment offerings, working with classroom teachers, BASE or After School Care) are required to be in the appropriate location immediately upon dismissal of school. The school is not responsible for students not adhering to this policy.

Please note that all late fees will be added to the parent's myschoolbucks account.

If a parent has not arrived to pick up their child and cannot be reached by phone within 15 minutes after dismissal time, we will call the emergency contact(s) listed on their enrollment forms. The Department of Social Services and/or the Douglas County Police Department will be contacted if parents cannot be contacted or do not arrive within 30 minutes of closing time. Thank you for your assistance in this safety matter.

## Attendance, Absences, Tardiness, and Truancy

#### **Attendance**

State law requires that all students from age six (6) to age seventeen (17) regularly attend school. The basic responsibility for regular school attendance lies with the students and with the parents. The role of the school in attendance matters is one of cooperation, counseling, and reporting to parents and the school district. The law expects parental cooperation. It is the duty of the school officials to know the whereabouts of students during the school hours.

Students may be excused for specific purposes only when signed out appropriately through the main office. Attendance is taken during the first 10 minutes of each class period and a record is kept of absences from each class. Hours of absence will be accumulated and recorded on report cards and on permanent school records at the end of each school year.

Excessive absence (excused or unexcused) of 5 days or more may require a conference with administration to ensure that the student's academic and health needs are being met. Once a student has been absent (excused or unexcused) from a class 7 days or more, the student may be in jeopardy of failing that class, per the discretion of the teacher and STEM administration.

#### Absences

Absence from school during regularly scheduled school hours.

- If a student is expected to be absent, parents may excuse the absence by calling STEM between 7:30 a.m. and 9:00 a.m. within 48 hours of the absence. A written excuse is not necessary if the parent has made a phone call.
- A student shall not leave the school during the school day without reporting to the appropriate school office and obtaining permission, unless off campus lunch privileges apply. Failure to report to the office shall result in being charged with an unexcused absence or truancy.
- If a student becomes ill while in school, he/she shall report to the main office. An attempt will be made to contact a parent before allowing the student to go home. All students will be asked to list two (2) additional people whom the school may call if contact cannot be made with either parent. The student will be retained until contact can be made with a responsible adult who will take charge of the student.
- Students who are excused must leave the school and/or be off school grounds.

- A student must be in attendance during the day of an evening activity in order to participate in the evening activity, unless he/she has an excused absence.
- Students who accumulate five (5) unexcused absences may be denied credit for the course
- Students who accumulate seven (7) total absences (excused or unexcused) per semester may be denied credit for the course

#### **Excused Absences**

An excused absence is defined as resulting from temporary or extended leave from school for the following reasons:

- A student who is temporarily ill or injured
- A student who is absent for an extended period due to a physical disability or a mental or behavioral health disorder
- A student who is pursuing a work-study program under the supervision of the school
- A student who is attending any school-sponsored activity or activities of an educational nature with advance approval by the administration
- A student who is suspended or expelled
- Religious accommodations
- A student who is absent due to therapy, medical, legal, or victim services related to an incident of harassment or discrimination, as defined by and in accordance with state law
- If a student is in out-of-home placement (as that term is defined by C.R.S. 22-32-138 (1)(h)), absences due to court appearances and participation in court-ordered activities will be excused. The student's assigned social worker must verify the student's absence was for a court appearance or court-ordered activity.
- Family emergency (death, serious illness)
- Funeral
- Dental or medical appointments that cannot be made on Saturdays or after school hours
- Prearranged absence by the parent with advance approval by the Director for the student's grade level. This will require advance make-up work except in emergencies, which will be evaluated and determined valid or invalid by the Director for the student's grade level.
- Absences when a student is in custody of a court or law enforcement authority
- Other absences approved by the Director for the student's grade level

The school may require appropriate evidence regarding the above excused absences before approval of the absence being excused (i.e. a doctor's note, etc.).

An absence from school without the authorization of the parents or the school for reasons not acceptable as defined above as "excused absence" is an unexcused absence and shall be considered towards habitual truancy.

Missed work for unexcused absences may not receive full credit. This decision is at the discretion of the teacher and administration. An unexcused absence is defined as:

- An absence that the parent/guardian is unaware of, and/or not accepting of the reason for absence
- F An absence not excused within 48 hours and, therefore, unwilling to excuse, except to the extent required by law
- An absence for which there is not supporting documentation

Four (4) unexcused absences during any one month or a total of ten (10) unexcused absences during any school year will qualify the students as "habitually truant" and may result in court proceedings to enforce Colorado's mandatory school attendance law, according to DCSD policy.

#### **Extended Absences**

In the case that your student will not be at school for a prolonged period of time for travel, medical, etc...it is crucial that plans be made ahead of time to help students maintain success here at STEM. An extended absence is considered to be 3 or more consecutive days out of school.

Here is the process to be followed when requesting a prolonged absence:

- Contact administration with the dates of the absence- <u>Extended Absence Form</u>
- Set up a conference or email the teacher(s) to develop a plan
- Make teacher aware of internet accessibility or other potential challenges
- Provide a physician's note (medical) to administration

#### **Tardiness**

Punctuality is one of the self-disciplines that students are encouraged to learn. Students are expected to be punctual for all classes throughout the year.

Being tardy is the failure to appear on time and is considered a form of absence. Tardiness is defined as not being in the student's designated seat, with all materials setup, when the bell rings. Teachers may further define a tardy policy in their course syllabus.

- Students will be disciplined in accordance with the STEM School Highlands Ranch discipline policy listed below.
- Students can earn an unexcused absence by acquiring three (3) tardies.
- Students who are more than 10 minutes late for class will earn an unexcused absence.
- Students who accumulate five (5) unexcused absences may be denied credit for the course.
- Common problems such as car trouble, oversleeping, or forgetting materials in a locker are unacceptable reasons for tardy arrivals to school or class
- A tardy to a student's first class of the day can only be excused with a doctor's note

#### Truancy

Phase 1. Upon acquiring two (2) excused or unexcused absences within one month or upon acquiring five (5) excused or unexcused absences within a school year, STEM may notify the parent/guardian of the student in writing to alert them that their student is at medium risk of being qualified as Habitually

Truant. This notification will include the number of excused/unexcused absences that have been recorded for the student and a summary of parental obligations regarding compulsory attendance policies and laws. An agent of the school will attempt to ascertain the reason for the student's high number of absences and counsel the parent/guardian and student about the importance of attendance from both an academic and legal perspective.

Phase 2. Upon acquiring three (3) excused or unexcused absences within one month or upon acquiring eight (8) excused or unexcused absences within a school year, STEM may notify the parent/guardian of the student in writing to alert them that their student is at high risk of being qualified as Habitually Truant. This notification will include the same information as the previous notice and add information about the school's legal responsibility to move toward legal action in case the student's excused/unexcused absences equal or exceed four (4) or more excused/unexcused absences with a month or equal or exceed ten (10) or more excused/unexcused absences in a school year. An agent of the school will organize a meeting with the parent/guardian and the student to develop a plan for the student with the goal of assisting the student to remain in school.

Phase 3. Upon acquiring four (4) or more excused or unexcused absences within a month or acquiring ten (10) or more excused or unexcused absences within a school year or calendar year, STEM may present to the Board of Directors Exhibit A, Exhibit B and Exhibit C as documentation of the school's enforcement of compulsory attendance. The Board of Directors shall notify the parent/guardian in writing that the student is now considered Habitually Truant and that the matter shall be reported to the Douglas County Truancy Review Board.

Phase 4. The Douglas County Truancy Review Board may pursue judicial proceedings to compel compliance with the compulsory attendance statute and/or to enlist community resources. Possible consequences of judicial proceedings may include, but are not limited to, contempt, jail or fines. The Board of Directors may combine the notice of Habitual Truancy to parents/guardians and summons. If combined, the petition shall state the date on which proceedings will be initiated, which date shall not be less than five days from the date of the notice and summons. The notice shall state the provisions of this article with which compliance is required and shall state that the proceedings will not be brought if the child complies with that provision before the filing of the proceeding (C.R.S. § 22-33-108(5)).

### Closed Campus

STEM School Highlands Ranch is a closed campus for students in grades K through 9. Once students have begun their school day, they are required to remain on campus until the completion of the school day unless appropriate arrangements have been made and/or approved by a parent or guardian. Students in grades 10th-12th will be granted open campus privileges during the student's designated lunch period only.

### **Leaving School**

Upperclassmen (grades 10th-12th graders) are permitted off campus privileges during off periods. All other students are not permitted to leave school grounds at any time during the school day. If a student must leave because of illness, medical appointments, or family emergencies, a parent must sign their student out. Returning students must sign-in at the office. Individual teachers do not have authority to excuse any student from the school during the school day.

## Emergency Closing, Delayed Openings and Early Dismissals

The following procedures are used to close school or to delay the opening of school due to inclement weather. STEM School Highlands Ranch may follow the closing and/or delay procedures set forth for the Douglas County Highlands Ranch Feeder Area. Also note that in the event of nearby lightning, students may be kept inside for delayed dismissal following the Douglas County School District lightning protocols.

### **Delayed Opening**

If Douglas County Schools calls a Late Start day, STEM implements a Virtual School Day wherein 20% of the learning in each class will be synchronous. Elementary school students will have 20% of math and ELA synchronous. The school building will be closed to students. Parents will be notified via Infinite Campus. Additionally, please monitor local news sources for updated information.

### Early Dismissal

Students may be dismissed early from school to ensure their safety home due to inclement weather. The decision on after-school activities will be made by Douglas County School District no later than 1:30 in the afternoon. Changes in school schedules will be posted on the website, social media channels and announced on local television stations. When possible, STEM will send an IC message to all parents.

## **Closing School**

If Douglas County Schools calls a school closure, STEM will be closed to students.

## **Emergency Protocol**

Below you will find general information that you should be aware of in the event of an emergency. Please keep in mind that not all information is disclosed in order to protect the safety of staff and students.

- Staff members will not open doors during a lockdown
- Visitors will be allowed access to students only if the Douglas County Sheriff's Department (DCSD) determines the site is secure
- The school will adhere to all demands by the DCSD.
- Information regarding a lockdown or other emergency at the school will be posted on the school's social media and website (www.stemk12.org) as soon as possible. However, our main

2024-2025 Student/Parent Handbook

- priority will be the safety of the students prior to parent communications. Therefore, we may not be able to answer the phones or return calls as quickly in the event of an emergency.
- Parents are asked not to contact the DCSD for information. This is a firm request of the DCSD.
- We will attempt to provide parents and guardians with accurate information as quickly as
  possible. However, please understand that events of this nature are very fluid and constantly
  changing. Also be aware that information from other sources, such as news media, Facebook
  or Twitter, may not be accurate. Should your child contact you during such an event, remind
  them it is important they follow the directions of school staff.

## **Communication Pathways**

STEM School Highlands Ranch recognizes the importance of appropriate communication pathways. STEM School Highlands Ranch will maintain a web page and update it regularly with information on events and issues of importance to the community. Email news and announcements will be sent as needed to augment and emphasize items on the web page. It is very important that parents read the Weekly Parent Newsletter so that they remain informed on all of the events happening at STEM. Communication between the school and parents is also vitally important to the proper operation of the school. Often misunderstandings can arise when events in the classroom are interpreted through the eyes of our students. Effective communication pathways can reduce or eliminate the impact of these events. The following are provided as a guide for communication within the school and between the school and our community.

- Parents or community members with questions about the conduct of school should make every attempt to contact the appropriate teachers first. Contact may be via phone call, email, or meetings with the teachers.
- Teachers are to make every attempt to respond to email and phone messages within two business days of receipt of the question.
- If parents or community members have questions that do not involve specific teachers, they should arrange a meeting with the Director for the student's grade level to discuss issues of broader concern. Appointments can be set up by calling the office (303-683-STEM).
- In the event concerns are not satisfactorily met, parents or community members have the
  option to present the concerns to the STEM School of Highlands Ranch Board of Directors.
  Inquiries to the Board will be routed through the STEM Executive Director (or the highest
  ranking school official). Please follow the grievance procedures outlined below.

Link here for the <u>Communications Pathways</u>. This will help guide you to the right person for your questions and/or concerns. You may reach the communications department directly by emailing: <u>communications@stemk12.org</u>.

## Change of Contact Information (Address, Phone Number, etc.)

Please inform the main office of any change in address, telephone number, and/or emergency number. This will enable us to contact parents in a timely manner when necessary. Upon enrollment, the parent(s) enrolling the student will be considered the "primary contact." . If a restraining or other

court order is in effect, it is the parent's responsibility to provide the school's administration with a copy of the order in a timely manner.

# Complaint and Whistleblower Policy

The grievance procedure may be used for any situation occurring within the operation or normal procedures of the school, which causes a student, parent or guardian to believe that a student has been wronged. A student, parent, or guardian may initiate the procedure when they believe that a violation, misapplication, or misinterpretation of school or Board policy or state or federal law or regulation has occurred. If students or parents have concerns that involve classroom teachers, the Board strongly encourages the concerned persons first to contact the teacher directly to resolve such matters informally whenever possible. If the concern is with the school administrators or support staff, the Board strongly encourages concerned persons to attempt direct contact with the Executive Director or appropriate Director for the student's grade level to reach a satisfactory resolution, if possible.

If a grievance is filed during the summer, the teacher will handle the complaint or grievance upon returning to school in August.

To learn more about the Complaint and Whistleblower policy, please click here.

Notification of Rights under FERPA for Elementary and Secondary Schools

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) affords parents and students who are 18 years of age or older ("eligible students") certain rights with respect to the student's education records.

To learn more about the Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), click <a href="here">here</a>. To learn more about the Rights Under the Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment (PPRA), click <a href="here">here</a>.

Parents who believe their rights have been violated may file a complaint with:

Student Privacy Policy Office U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Avenue, SW Washington, D.C. 20202